
 

  
 

Place Select 
Committee 

Agenda 

 
 

 

Date: 
 
Venue: 

Monday 9 October 2023 at 2.00 pm 
 
Jim Cooke Conference Suite, Stockton CentralLibrary, Stockton - on - Tees, 
TS18 1TU 

 
 
Cllr Richard Eglington (Chair) 
Cllr Katie Weston (Vice-Chair) 
 
Cllr Michelle Bendelow Cllr Ray Godwin 
Cllr Stefan Houghton Cllr Andrew Sherris 
Cllr Marilyn Surtees Cllr Hilary Vickers 
Cllr Alan Watson  
 
 

AGENDA 
 
1   Evacuation Procedure 

 
(Pages 7 - 8) 

 
2   Apologies for Absence 

 
 
 

3   Declarations of Interest 
 

 
 

4   Minutes 
 

 

 To approve the minutes of the last meeting held on 11 
September 2023. 
 

(Pages 9 - 12) 
 

5   Scrutiny Review of Domestic Waste Collections, 
Kerbside Recycling and Green Waste 
 

 

 To receive evidence from a representative from the Waste 
and Resources Action Programme.  
 

(Pages 13 - 40) 
 

6   Chair's Update and Work Programme 2023-2024 
 

(Pages 41 - 42) 
 

 

Page 1



  
 

Place Select 
Committee 

Agenda 

 
 

Members of the Public - Rights to Attend Meeting 
 
With the exception of any item identified above as containing exempt or confidential information under the 
Local Government Act 1972 Section 100A(4), members of the public are entitled to attend this meeting 
and/or have access to the agenda papers. 
 
Persons wishing to obtain any further information on this meeting, including the opportunities available   for 
any member of the public to speak at the meeting; or for details of access to the meeting for 
disabled people, please 
 
Contact:      Scrutiny Support Officer Rachel Harrison on email rachel.harrison@stockton.gov.uk 

Page 2



  

KEY - Declarable interests are:- 
 
●  Disclosable Pecuniary Interests (DPI’s) 
●  Other Registerable Interests (ORI’s) 
●  Non Registerable Interests (NRI’s) 

 
Members – Declaration of Interest Guidance 

 

 

Page 3



  

 

 

Table 1 - Disclosable Pecuniary Interests 

Subject Description 

Employment,  
office, trade,  
profession or  
vocation 

Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for profit or gain 

Sponsorship 

Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than from the council) 
made to the councillor during the previous 12-month period for expenses incurred by 
him/her in carrying out his/her duties as a councillor, or towards his/her election 
expenses. 
This includes any payment or financial benefit from a trade union within the meaning 
of the Trade Union and Labour Relations (Consolidation) Act 1992. 

Contracts 

Any contract made between the councillor or his/her spouse or civil partner or the 
person with whom the councillor is living as if they were spouses/civil partners (or a 
firm in which such person is a partner, or an incorporated body of which such person 
is a director* or  
 
a body that such person has a beneficial interest in the securities of*) and the council 
—  
(a) under which goods or services are to be provided or works are to be executed; 
and  
(b) which has not been fully discharged. 

Land and 
property 

Any beneficial interest in land which is within the area of the council.  
‘Land’ excludes an easement, servitude, interest or right in or over land which does 
not give the councillor or his/her spouse or civil partner or the person with whom the 
councillor is living as if they were spouses/ civil partners (alone or jointly with another) 
a right to occupy or to receive income. 

Licences 
Any licence (alone or jointly with others) to occupy land in the area of the council for a 
month or longer. 

Corporate 
tenancies 

Any tenancy where (to the councillor’s knowledge)—  
(a) the landlord is the council; and  
(b) the tenant is a body that the councillor, or his/her spouse or civil partner or the 
person with whom the councillor is living as if they were spouses/ civil partners is a 
partner of or a director* of or has a beneficial interest in the securities* of. 

Securities 

Any beneficial interest in securities* of a body where—     
(a) that body (to the councillor’s   knowledge) has a place of business or   land in the 
area of the council; and     
(b) either—     
(i) the total nominal value of the   securities* exceeds £25,000 or one hundredth of the 
total issued share capital of that body; or     
(ii)      if the share capital of that body is of more than one class, the total nominal 
value of the shares of any one class in which the councillor, or his/ her spouse or civil 
partner or the person with whom the councillor is living as if they were spouses/civil 
partners have a beneficial interest exceeds one hundredth of the total issued share 
capital of that class. 

* ‘director’ includes a member of the committee of management of an industrial and provident society. 
 
* ‘securities’ means shares, debentures, debenture stock, loan stock, bonds, units of a collective investment 
scheme within the meaning of the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 and other securities of any 
description, other than money deposited with a building society.

Page 4



  

 

 

Table 2 – Other Registerable Interest 

You must register as an Other Registrable Interest: 
 
a) any unpaid directorships 
 
b) any body of which you are a member or are in a position of general control or management and to which 
you are nominated or appointed by your authority  
 
c) any body  
 
(i) exercising functions of a public nature  
 
(ii) directed to charitable purposes or  
 
(iii) one of whose principal purposes includes the influence of public opinion or policy (including any political 
party or trade union) of which you are a member or in a position of general control or management 

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 6



Jim Cooke Conference Suite, Stockton Central Library 
Evacuation Procedure & Housekeeping 
 
If the fire or bomb alarm should sound please exit by the nearest emergency exit. 
The Fire alarm is a continuous ring and the Bomb alarm is the same as the fire 
alarm however it is an intermittent ring.  
 
If the Fire Alarm rings exit through the nearest available emergency exit and form 
up in Municipal Buildings Car Park.   
 
The assembly point for everyone if the Bomb alarm is sounded is the car park at 
the rear of Splash on Church Road.  
 
The emergency exits are located via the doors between the 2 projector screens. 
The key coded emergency exit door will automatically disengage when the alarm 
sounds. 
 
The Toilets are located on the Ground floor corridor of Municipal Buildings next to 
the emergency exit. Both the ladies and gents toilets are located on the right 
hand side. 
 
Microphones 
 
During the meeting, members of the Committee, and officers in attendance, will 
have access to a microphone. Please use the microphones, when directed to 
speak by the Chair, to ensure you are heard by the Committee. 

Page 7

Agenda Item 1



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 8



PLACE SELECT COMMITTEE 

A meeting of Place Select Committee was held on Monday 11 September 2023. 

Present: Cllr Richard Eglington (Chair), Cllr John Coulson (Sub for Cllr 
Andrew Sherris), Cllr Stefan Houghton, Cllr Marilyn Surtees, Cllr 
Hilary Vickers, Cllr Sylvia Walmsley (Sub for Cllr Ray Godwin) and 
Cllr Alan Watson. 

Officers: Dale Rowbotham, Paul Steele, Edward Tannahill, Craig Willows 
(CS,E&C) and Rebecca Saunders-Thompson (CS). 

Also in 
attendance: 

Apologies: Cllr Katie Weston (Vice-Chair), Cllr Michelle Bendelow, Cllr Ray 
Godwin and Cllr Andrew Sherris. 

PLA/7/23 Evacuation Procedure 

The Committee noted the evacuation and housekeeping procedure. 

PLA/8/23 Declarations of Interest 

There were no declarations of interest. 

PLA/9/23 Minutes 

AGREED the minutes of the meeting held on 10 July 2023 be confirmed as a correct 
record and signed by the Chair. 

PLA/10/23 Scrutiny Review of Domestic Waste Collections, Kerbside Recycling and Green 
Waste 

Consideration was given to the Scope and Project Plan of the Scrutiny Review of 
Domestic Waste Collections, Kerbside Recycling and Green Waste.  
The overall aim of the review was to analyse the Council’s approach to waste 
reduction to determine how it could be improved to reduce the financial and carbon 
cost. The review would consider the potential public resistance but also the 
importance of the environment, the costs of service delivery, and the direction of 
national policy over food waste.  

The key lines of enquiry were: 
• What is the current waste management strategy for Stockton-on-Tees Borough
Council (SBC) and how does this align with the joint waste management strategy for
the Tees Valley?
• What financial and strategic challenges does the authority face regarding waste
management in the short, medium and long term?
• How do the key issues surrounding domestic waste, recycling and green waste vary
across the Borough?
• How do SBC’s recycling rates compare with other local authorities in the Tees
Valley/ the North East/ nationally?

Page 9

Agenda Item 4



• What actions need to be taken following the Government’s introduction of
mandatory food waste collection?
• How will the introduction of the (Deposit Return Scheme DRS) and Extended
Producer Responsibility (EPR) impact on kerbside waste and recycling collections?
• How can the anticipated rise in gate fees be managed to ease additional financial
pressures?
• What are the viable options to alter the current system of kerbside waste and
recycling collections?

Key contributors would be Stockton-on-Tees Borough Council Officers, and a 
representative from Waste and Resources Action Programme (WRAP). 

The Select Committee received a background presentation from the review’s link 
officer, Service Manager, Community Services, Environment and Culture.  

The presentation covered: 
• Timeline of changes in the Council’s recycling and waste collection service
• Collection
• Receptacles
• Waste Disposal
• Kerbside Recycling
• Recycling Rates and Targets
• How do we compare
• North East Comparison
• Top Performers
• Stakeholders
• Future National Strategy
• Challenges and Risks

The Committee requested the following further information as part of the review and 
key issues discussed included: 
• Officers highlighted that Stockton-on-Tees Borough Council currently has the highest
kg’s of residual waste per household in the country and are one of the only councils to
collect weekly residual waste in a 240ltr wheeled bin.
• Discussions were held on the allocation of income generated from the collection of
clean recycling. Officers explained that this income was included in the annual budget
for waste collection and disposal and fluctuated depending on market prices for
materials. Income generated in the previous financial year amounted to around
£190,000.
• Concerns over the additional pressures on waste and recycling collection services
arising from new housing developments currently under construction across the
borough were raised.
• The significant increase in gate fees and the implications of this were discussed but
figures were not disclosed in the public meeting. It was agreed that figures would be
presented to Members (outside of the public meeting) in future.
• The need to increase recycling rates was discussed at length. Members suggested
that recycling could be collected weekly and residual waste could be collected
fortnightly.
• Members questioned if providing residents with smaller bins (as opposed to the
current 240l bin) was a viable option to improve recycling rates. Officers responded
that there was a significant initial cost to replacing all bins and other authorities tended
to alter the frequency of collection before changing the size of bins. However, this
option could be explored as part of the review.

Page 10



• Members highlighted that the introduction of weekly mandatory food waste
collections, and the requirement for separate food receptacles, could decrease the
need for weekly residual waste collections.
• Concerns about additional bin/receptacle storage for residents in multi-occupancy
properties were raised and officers explained that they were working with DEFRA on
this issue and this would be considered as part of the review.
• It was agreed that sufficient communication plans to inform residents of changes to
services and to encourage higher recycling rates were essential.
• Officers explained that forecasting and modelling on future options for the Council’s
waste and recycling service was ongoing and would be shared with Members during
this review.

AGREED that: 
1) the draft scope and project plan of the review be approved.
2) the further information be provided as requested.

PLA/11/23 Chair's Update and Select Committee Work Programme 2023-2024 

Consideration was given to the Work Programme.  

The next meeting would be held on Monday 9 October 2023. 

AGREED that the Work Programme be noted. 

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 12



 

1 
 

Place Select Committee 
 

Review of Domestic Waste Collections, Kerbside 
Recycling and Green Waste 
 

Outline Scope 
  

 

  
Scrutiny Chair (Project Director): 
Cllr Richard Eglington  

Contact details: 
Richard.Eglinton@stockton.gov.uk  
 

Scrutiny Officer (Project Manager): 
Rebecca Saunders-Thompson  
 

Contact details: 
Rebecca.Saunders-
Thompson@stockton.gov.uk 
 

Departmental Link Officer: 
Dale Rowbotham (Service Manager) 

Contact details: 
Dale.Rowbotham@stockton.gov.uk  
 

Which of our strategic corporate objectives does this topic address?  
 
This review will contribute to the following areas of the Council Plan 2023-2026 vision:  
 
A place that is clean, vibrant and attractive.  
This means we will enjoy: 

• great places to live and visit 
• clean and green spaces 

 
A Council that is ambitious, effective and proud to serve. 
This means that we will make sure that we provide: 

• financial sustainability and value for money 
• dedicated and resourceful employees 
• strong leadership and governance 

 
 
The project would contribute to the Councils Environmental Sustainability & Carbon Reduction 
Strategy, specifically Aim 3 to “Maximise the use of existing resources, minimise waste and 
achieve high levels of re-use and recycling”. 
 

What are the main issues and overall aim of this review? 
 
Main Issues 
Waste and recycling collections impact every resident in the Borough and are a key service and a 
statutory duty that Stockton-on-Tees Borough Council (SBC) deliver to residents. The service is 
highly visible and impacts on every household. The Council’s waste and recycling provisions are 
very popular with residents and have regularly received excellent customer service feedback. 
 
However, collecting refuse weekly in a 240L bin does bring with it a negative effect on the overall 
household waste recycling rate which the council can achieve. Residents currently have access 
to a large residual waste disposal capacity of 240 litres every week. This amount of refuse 
disposal capacity acts as a key disincentive for residents to recycle due to the convenience factor 
which the 240L green wheeled bins provide. Generally, only those residents with a keen interest 

Page 13

Agenda Item 5

mailto:Richard.Eglinton@stockton.gov.uk
mailto:Rebecca.Saunders-Thompson@stockton.gov.uk
mailto:Rebecca.Saunders-Thompson@stockton.gov.uk
mailto:Dale.Rowbotham@stockton.gov.uk


 

2 
 

in recycling, will recycle.  
 
Due to new Government legislation, councils will need to rollout mandatory weekly food waste 
collections by 1st April 2026. As a result of this rollout date, which also aligns with the start date of 
the council’s new waste disposal contract, SBC’s current waste and recycling collection services 
should be reviewed to ensure an efficient, effective and resilient service in the future. 
 
There are major financial pressures which local authorities will need to deal with over the coming 
years and, with the expected increase of gate fees from the new waste disposal contract on 1st 
April 2026, reviewing waste and recycling collections should be seen as an opportunity to help 
with the financial pressure on the authority.  
 
The most common reason given for retaining weekly collection is the potential for food waste to 
create a smell and a hazard if it is uncollected for up to 2 weeks. This is particularly likely in warm 
weather. However, the introduction of mandatory weekly food waste collections from 1st April 
2026, would resolve this issue and the benefits of alternative weekly collection of other residual 
waste may then outweigh the disadvantages.  
 
The Council’s continued failure to increase recycling and reduce its carbon impact could become 
the subject of national Government challenge and penalties as climate change accelerates.  
 
Stockton’s current recycling rate is the lowest in the Tees Valley at 24.3% in 2020/21, ranking 
SBC 328 out of 338 authorities nationally. This compares to the Tees Valley average of 30.58%, 
the northeast average of 32.84% and a national average of 42%. 
 

Stockton’s 240L weekly residual waste capacity has a significant impact on residual waste per 
household (KG/HH), which can be seen when compared to other Northeast Authorities, with 
Stockton having the highest KG/HH of the 7 authorities.  
 
The Joint Waste Management Strategy (JWMS) and the Tees Valley Outline Business Case (TV 
OBC) has a target of a 45%-50% Tees Valley Recycling rate by 2027, with a national target of 
65% recycling rate for municipal solid waste by 2035. Without significant collection model 
changes this would not be achievable. 
 
The requirements of the Resources and Waste Strategy for England 2018 and the Environment 
Act 2021 places a statutory duty on all waste collection and unitary authorities in England to 
collect food waste separately and to treat this waste by recycling. The Council is awaiting clarity 
around the details of start date and funding, however, after discussions with Defra it is expected 
that SBC will need to collect food waste by 1st April 2026. 

Also, the Government has now released their response to the Deposit Return Scheme (DRS) 
consultation. DRS will be introduced nationally from October 2025 and will include single use 
drinks containers of plastic bottles and cans. Glass will be excluded from the scheme. Local 
Authorities will now need to understand how the introduction of DRS will impact the kerbside 
recycling collections, as any drinks container in scope that would have been placed in the 
kerbside recycling container will now find its way to a DRS drop off point. It is anticipated that a 
‘levy’ of around 20p will be added to each drinks container upon purchase and this will be 
refunded to the customer once the item has been returned. 

Extended Producer Responsibility (EPR) is another element of the strategy and places the 
responsibility onto packaging producers to cover the full net cost of dealing with the packaging 
they place on the market. It is expected local authorities will receive payments from 2024/25 for 
any packaging which finds its way to kerbside waste streams. The details of how this funding 
mechanism will work is not yet known, though it is believed to be based on the quality and 
quantity of collected material. 

Page 14



 

3 
 

Consistency in Collections is another consultation which will impact SBC collections with 
legislation which has placed a requirement on councils to collect glass, metal, plastic, paper and 
card, food and garden waste separately. Whether green waste collections should be free of 
charge or not is also the subject of discussions as part of this consultation.  
 
Overall aim  
 
Levels of recycling in the Borough are amongst the lowest in the country. The cost of the weekly 
collection of general waste is increasing rapidly. Food waste collection is likely to be a 
requirement in the coming years and a proactive approach could contribute to the Council’s 
carbon reduction targets. The free collection of garden waste/green waste also benefits some 
communities more than others.  
 
Overall, the Council’s approach to waste reduction could be improved to reduce the financial and 
carbon cost. Therefore, this review aims to take into account the potential public resistance but 
also give appropriate consideration to the importance of the environment, the costs of service 
delivery, and the direction of national policy over food waste.  
 

The Committee will undertake the following key lines of enquiry: 
 

• What is the current waste management strategy for Stockton-on-Tees Borough Council (SBC)  
and how does this align with the joint waste management strategy for the Tees Valley?  

 

• What financial and strategic challenges does the authority face regarding waste management 
in the short, medium and long term?  

 

• How do the key issues surrounding domestic waste, recycling and green waste vary across 
the Borough? 

 

• How do SBC’s recycling rates compare with other local authorities in the Tees Valley/ the 
North East/ nationally?  

 

• What actions need to be taken following the Government’s introduction of mandatory food 
waste collection?   

 

• How will the introduction of the (Deposit Return Scheme DRS) and Extended Producer 
Responsibility (EPR) impact on kerbside waste and recycling collections?  

 

• How can the anticipated rise in gate fees be managed to ease additional financial pressures?  
 

• What are the viable options to alter the current system of kerbside waste and recycling 
collections?  

 

Who will the Committee be trying to influence as part of its work? 
 
Council, Cabinet, Tees Valley Combined Authority, Government, public.  
 

Expected duration of review and key milestones: 
 
8 months (reporting to Cabinet in February 2024) 
 
Approve scope and project plan – September 2023 
Receive evidence – October – November 2023 
Draft recommendations – December 2023  

Page 15



 

4 
 

Final report – January 2024 
Report to Cabinet – February 2024  
 

What information do we need?  

Existing information (background information, existing reports, legislation, central government 
documents, etc.): 
 
HM Government, Our Waste, Our Resources: A Strategy for England (2021). Available at: 
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/765914/resources-
waste-strategy-dec-2018.pdf  

 
Environment Act 2021. Available at: https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2021/30/enacted  

 
Department for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs, Waste Management Plan for England 
(2021). Available at: 
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/955897/waste-
management-plan-for-england-2021.pdf  

 
Tees Valley Joint Waste Management Strategy 2020 to 2035. Available at: 
https://www.stockton.gov.uk/media/2591/Tees-Valley-Joint-Waste-Management-Strategy-2020-to-
2035/pdf/Tees_Valley_Joint_Waste_Management_Strategy_2020_to_2035.pdf?m=637813895580900000  
 

Stockton-on-Tees Borough Council, Bins, rubbish and recycling webpages. Available at: 
https://www.stockton.gov.uk/bins-rubbish-and-recycling  
 
Waste and Resources Action Programme (WRAP), Citizen Insights: UK Household Food Waste 
Tracking Survey 2022. Available at:  https://wrap.org.uk/sites/default/files/2023-

03/20230309%20Food%20Trends%202022.pdf  
 
 
Who can provide us with further relevant 
evidence? (Cabinet Member, officer, service 
user, general public, expert witness, etc.) 
 
 
Stockton-on-Tees Borough Council (SBC) 
Community Services           
 
 
 
 
 
 
Waste and Resources Action Programme 
(WRAP)  
 
 
 

What specific areas do we want them to cover 
when they give evidence?  
 
 
 

➢ Background information (current waste 
management strategies, current and 
future challenges and opportunities) 

➢ Data on Tees Valley authorities and 
other similar authorities (benchmarking)  

 
 
 

➢ National perspective and current 
challenges 

➢ How does SBC compare to other Local 
Authorities?  

How will this information be gathered? (eg. financial baselining and analysis, 
benchmarking, site visits, face-to-face questioning, telephone survey, survey) 
 
Committee meetings, reports, research, benchmarking, site visits (TBC).  

How will key partners and the public be involved in the review? 
 
Committee meetings, information submissions, site visits (TBC).  

Page 16

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/765914/resources-waste-strategy-dec-2018.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/765914/resources-waste-strategy-dec-2018.pdf
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2021/30/enacted
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/955897/waste-management-plan-for-england-2021.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/955897/waste-management-plan-for-england-2021.pdf
https://www.stockton.gov.uk/media/2591/Tees-Valley-Joint-Waste-Management-Strategy-2020-to-2035/pdf/Tees_Valley_Joint_Waste_Management_Strategy_2020_to_2035.pdf?m=637813895580900000
https://www.stockton.gov.uk/media/2591/Tees-Valley-Joint-Waste-Management-Strategy-2020-to-2035/pdf/Tees_Valley_Joint_Waste_Management_Strategy_2020_to_2035.pdf?m=637813895580900000
https://www.stockton.gov.uk/bins-rubbish-and-recycling
https://wrap.org.uk/sites/default/files/2023-03/20230309%20Food%20Trends%202022.pdf
https://wrap.org.uk/sites/default/files/2023-03/20230309%20Food%20Trends%202022.pdf


 

5 
 

How will the review help the Council meet the Public Sector Equality Duty?       
 
The Equality Act 2010 protects everyone from discrimination on grounds of nine Protected 
Characteristics (including – but not limited to – age, gender, disability, ethnicity), and advance 
equality of opportunity for those with Protected Characteristics. Public bodies must have due 
regard to the need to encourage people from protected groups to participate in public life or in 
other activities where their participation is disproportionately low.  
 

How will the review contribute towards the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment, or the 
implementation of the Health and Wellbeing Strategy? 
 
Stockton Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA): Environment: ‘Waste and recycling’ is 
included as an aspect of the environment in Stockton-on-Tees that has an influence on public 
health and wellbeing. 
 
Stockton-on-Tees Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy 2019-2023: All people in Stockton-on-
Tees live in healthy places and sustainable communities.  
 

Provide an initial view as to how this review could lead to efficiencies, improvements 
and/or transformation: 
 
Due to the introduction of mandatory weekly food waste collections, there are significant 
opportunities to deliver carbon reductions and environmental benefits across the whole service.  
 
If changes are made from the review of waste and recycling collections, this would also help to 
support the Council’s aspirations to achieve net zero greenhouse gas emissions.  
 
The review would also help in achieving the targets set out in the Tees Valley Joint Waste 
Management Strategy (TVJWMS) which aims to increase recycling levels, reduce the carbon 
impact of waste management and reduce the amount of waste generated by households. 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 17



 

6 
 

Project Plan 
 

Key Task Details/Activities Date Responsibility 

Scoping of Review 
 

Information gathering 
 

 
July 2023 

Scrutiny Officer 
Link Officer 
 

Tri-Partite Meeting 
 

Meeting to discuss aims 
and objectives of review 

24.07.2023 Select Committee Chair and 
Vice Chair, Cabinet 
Member(s), Director(s), 
Scrutiny Officer, Link Officer 
 

Agree Project Plan 
 

Scope and Project Plan 
agreed by Committee 
 

11.09.2023 Select Committee 

Publicity of Review 
 

Determine whether 
Communications Plan 
needed 
 

TBC Link Officer, Scrutiny Officer 

Obtaining Evidence 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Background presentation 
and benchmarking 
 
 
 
 
 
Site visit & Evidence 
Session  

09.10.2023 
 
 
 

13.11.2023 
 
 

 30.11.2023 

Select Committee 
 

Members decide 
recommendations 
and findings 
 

Review summary of 
findings and formulate draft 
recommendations 

11.12.23 Select Committee 

Circulate Draft 
Report to 
Stakeholders 
 

Circulation of Report TBC Scrutiny Officer 

Tri-Partite Meeting 
 

Meeting to discuss findings 
of review and draft 
recommendations 

21.12.2023 Select Committee Chair and 
Vice Chair, Cabinet 
Member(s), Director(s), 
Scrutiny Officer, Link Officer 
 

Final Agreement of 
Report 
 

Approval of final report by 
Committee 

15.01.2024 Select Committee, Cabinet 
Member, Director 

Consideration of 
Report by Executive 
Scrutiny  
Committee 
 

Consideration of report 05.03.2024 Executive Scrutiny 
Committee 

Report to 
Cabinet/Approving 
Body 
 

Presentation of final report 
with recommendations for 
approval to Cabinet 

15.02.2024 Cabinet / Approving Body 

 

Page 18



This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

WRAP support to 
Stockton-on-Tees 
Borough Council 

Helping the Council review and assess its 

household waste collection service

Mike Gardner, 

Local Authority Technical Consultant

P
age 19



This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

Content

• Outline support WRAP is providing

• National context

• Benchmarking performance

• Future options

P
age 20



This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

WRAP will review and update the findings of the 2017/18 WRAP support with 

the aim of helping officers and members understand how the Council’s 

household waste collection service could be reconfigured to meet the 

anticipated future financial pressures and regulatory requirements.

WRAP support

P
age 21



This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

National context

Resources & Waste Strategy & Environment Act 2021

• Requirement to separately collect ‘recyclable waste streams’ including food waste

• Extended Producer Responsibility (EPR) significant new (replacement?) funding stream
• Funding will come from producers of packaging waste

• Modelled net costs

• ‘Efficient and effective collections‘

• Deposit Return Scheme

Quality the common factor linking all the above

P
age 22



This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

Local context

• Currently dispose residual waste at SUEZ Haverton Hill –

contract extension April 2026.

• Currently enjoy a very competitive gate fee

• Landfill rate 5.9%, 93.1% to EFW

• New Facility currently being procured with other Tees 

Valley Authorities.

• Future residual waste gate fee likely to be significantly 

higher than now.

P
age 23



This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

Benchmarking performance

•Compare Stockton’s recycling rate with WRAP ‘nearest neighbour’ 
Rurality 4 authorities

•Compare Stockton’s residual waste arisings WRAP ‘nearest neighbour’ 
Rurality 4 authorities

P
age 24



This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

WRAP Rurality Group 4 (suburban/ high deprivation) 
‘nearest neighbours’

Barrow-in-Furness 

Kirklees 

Gateshead 

Preston 

Darlington 

Nuneaton and Bedworth 

Carlisle 

East Staffordshire 

Chesterfield 

Telford and Wrekin 

Bolton 

Wigan 

P
age 25



This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

2021/22 recycling rate

Rurality 4 ‘nearest neighbours'

2021/22 recycling rate Average

P
age 26



This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

2021/22 recycling rate

Rurality 4 all

2021/22 recycling rate Average

P
age 27



This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

800

Residual yield (kg/hh/yr)

Rurality 4 ‘nearest neighbours’

Residual yield (kg/hh/yr) Average

P
age 28



This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

800

Residual yield (kg/hh/yr)

Rurality 4 all

Residual yield (kg/hh/yr) Average

P
age 29



This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

Assessment of alternative collection scenarios

Current service

• Weekly collection of residual waste (i.e. refuse)

• Fortnightly collection of dry recycling (3 streams)

• Fortnightly seasonal collection of garden waste

Future scenarios include:

• Separate weekly food waste collections

• Fortnightly residual waste collections

• ‘Multi-stream’ collection

P
age 30



This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

WRAP

Separate food waste collections Collected weekly

P
age 31



This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22

weekly fortnightly

Refuse collection frequency over time (% households in England)

P
age 32



This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

Scenario 1 

Same as your current service except for 

the addition of a separate weekly 

collection of food waste. 

P
age 33



This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

Scenario 2

Same as Scenario 1 except refuse is collected once every fortnight rather than once a week.

Separate weekly food waste collection  

P
age 34



This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

Scenario 3

Fortnightly refuse collection with a 

weekly ‘multi-stream collection of dry 

recycling and food waste 

P
age 35



This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

Scenario 4

Fortnightly refuse collection with a 

fortnightly ‘comingled’ collection of 

dry recycling and weekly food waste

P
age 36



This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

Scenario assessment:

• Performance (% recycled, amount of residual waste)

• Cost (both Revenue and Capital costs)

• Carbon impact

• Qualitative assessment

P
age 37



This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

Timeline

• Presentation to ‘Place select committee’ outlining the work to be undertaken: 9th October 2023

• Update existing cost and performance models. Carry out Carbon impact modelling: 31st October 2023

• Presentation of findings to ‘Place select committee’: 13th November 2023

P
age 38



This document was classified as: OFFICIAL

Thank you

Mike Gardner

Local Authority Technical Consultant

mike.gardner@wrap.org.uk

wrap.org.uk

P
age 39

mailto:Mike.gardner@wrap.org.uk


T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 40



Place Select Committee Work Programme 2023-2024 

 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

Date (2pm unless 
stated) 

 

Topic Attendance 
 

Monday 10 July 2023 Overview Reports 

• Town Centres 
Development 

• Environment, Leisure & 
Green Infrastructure 

• Community Services 

• Inclusive Growth & 
Development 

• Housing and A Fairer 
Stockton-on-Tees 

Cllr Nigel Cooke/ Cllr Clare 
Gamble/ Cllr Norma 
Stephenson OBE/ Garry 
Cummings/ Reuben Kench/ 
Ann Workman/ Carolyn 
Nice/ Neil Mitchell/ Craig 
Willows  

Monday 11 September 
2023 

Scrutiny Review of Domestic 
Waste Collections, Kerbside 
Recycling and Green Waste 
Collections 

• Scope and Project Plan 

Dale Rowbotham/ Craig 
Willows 
 

Monday 9 October 2023 Scrutiny Review of Domestic 
Waste Collections, Kerbside 
Recycling and Green Waste 
Collections 

• Evidence Gathering 
 

Dale Rowbotham/ Craig 
Willows/Mike Gardner 
 

Monday 13 November 
2023 

 

Monitoring: Progress Update - 
Highways Asset Management 
(including Potholes and 
Flooding)  
 
Scrutiny Review of Domestic 
Waste Collections, Kerbside 
Recycling and Green Waste 
Collections 

• Evidence Gathering 
 

Ian Raine 
 
 
 
 
Dale Rowbotham/ Craig 
Willows 
 

Thursday 30 November 
2023 

(12-4pm) 

Scrutiny Review of Domestic 
Waste Collections, Kerbside 
Recycling and Green Waste 
Collections 

• Evidence Gathering and 
Site Visits 

 

Dale Rowbotham/ Craig 
Willows 
 

Monday 11 
December 2023 

(informal) 

Scrutiny Review of Domestic 
Waste Collections, Kerbside 
Recycling and Green Waste 
Collections 

• Summary of Evidence / 
Draft Recommendations 

Dale Rowbotham/ Craig 
Willows 
 

Page 41

Agenda Item 6



Place Select Committee Work Programme 2023-2024 

 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

Date (2pm unless 
stated) 

 

Topic Attendance 
 

Monday 15 January 
2024 

 

Scrutiny Review of Domestic 
Waste Collections, Kerbside 
Recycling and Green Waste 
Collections 

• (Draft) Final Report 

Dale Rowbotham/ Craig 
Willows 
 

Monday 12 February 
2024 

 

Overview Reports  
 

TBC 
 

Monday 11 March 2024 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Remaining Monitoring Items (to be scheduled) 
Progress Updates 

• Burial Provision 

• Residents Parking Zones 

• Planning (Development Management) and Adoption of Open Space 
 

Page 42


	Agenda
	1 Evacuation Procedure
	4 Minutes
	Minutes

	5 Scrutiny Review of Domestic Waste Collections, Kerbside Recycling and Green Waste
	WRAP presentation to Stockton 09_10_2023
	Slide 1: WRAP support to Stockton-on-Tees Borough Council  
	Slide 2
	Slide 3
	Slide 4
	Slide 5
	Slide 6
	Slide 7
	Slide 8
	Slide 9
	Slide 10
	Slide 11
	Slide 12
	Slide 13
	Slide 14
	Slide 15
	Slide 16
	Slide 17
	Slide 18
	Slide 19
	Slide 20
	Slide 21: Thank you


	6 Chair's Update and Work Programme 2023-2024

